The Aitkin County Board of Commissioners met this 25<sup>th</sup> day of June, 2019 at 1:30 p.m., at Aitkin City Hall, with the following members present: Board Chair Anne Marcotte, Commissioners J. Mark Wedel, Laurie Westerlund, Bill Pratt, County Administrator Jessica Seibert and Administrative Assistant Sue Bingham. Commissioner Don Niemi was not present.

**CALL TO ORDER** 

Motion by Commissioner Westerlund, seconded by Commissioner Pratt and carried, all members present voting yes to approve the June 25, 2019 amended agenda. Agenda Items 3E – Approve Contract for Survey Remonumentation Project, 3F – Approve Personnel Committee Recommendations, and 3G – Approve Letter of Support to Minnesota Public Utilities Commission, were added.

APPROVED AGENDA

Commissioner Don Niemi arrived at 1:37 p.m.

**NIEMI ARRIVED** 

# AITKIN COUNTY HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES BOARD MEETING MINUTES June 25, 2019

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES BOARD

#### **Attendance**

The Aitkin County Board of Commissioners met this 25th day of June, 2019, at 1:35 p.m. as the Aitkin County Health & Human Services Board, with the following members present: Commissioners Anne Marcotte, J. Mark Wedel, Laurie Westerlund, Don Niemi, arrived at 1:34 p.m., and Bill Pratt. Others present included: County Administrator Jessica Seibert, Cynthia Bennett ACH&HS Director, Child Social Services Supervisor Jessica Schultz, Public Health Supervisor Erin Melz, Public Health Educator Stacey Durgin, Assistant to the County Administrator Sue Bingham, H&HS Executive Assistant Shawn Speed, and Guests: Carole Holten/H&HS Advisory Committee Chair, and Brielle Bredsten/Aitkin Independent Age.

#### **Agenda**

Motion by Commissioner Wedel, seconded by Commissioner Westerlund and carried, all members voting yes to approve the June 25, 2019 Health & Human Services Board agenda with the change.

#### **Minutes**

Motion by Commissioner Westerlund, seconded by Commissioner Pratt and carried, all members voting yes to approve the May 28, 2019 Health and Human Services Board minutes.

#### Bills

Cynthia noted that there were no notable changes in the bills this past month.

Motion by Commissioner Wedel, seconded by Commissioner Westerlund and carried, all members voting yes to approve the bills.

Health & Human Services Director Report, Cynthia Bennett, ACH&HS Director Cynthia began by giving her legislative update.

Human Services faired very well this session.

# **AITKIN COUNTY BOARD**

Overall final HHS budget was a bit smaller than was originally proposed, however every issue identified by HHS as a priority was looked at.

Legislative decisions that were welcomed -

- Continuation of the Provider Tax at 1.8% with no sunset date.
- Commitment to fill the gap for the loss of Federal payment for children in residential treatment facilities.
- Opioid legislation that will bring money into our state to address the epidemic.
- Continuation at the base level of funding for local Public Health and the SHIP grant.
- Expansion of payment for telehealth services.
- Changes to the assisted living facilities regulations to better prevent maltreatment of vulnerable adults.

There were a lot of good thing that came out of this session.

Some areas, however, that did have changes we still do not know how they will affect us, for example-

- Substance Use Disorder (SUDS) reform which changed the requirements for assessors in 2017.
- CCDTF (Consolidated Chemical Dependency Treatment Fund) that counties paid money into and we no longer have to pay into that pool. We still have to pay for individuals receiving assessments who are not on MA or do not have private insurance, but not sure how much that will cost us. Nor do we have no way to predict how many of those we will have to pay for each year.

Other areas of interest: Childcare Assistance Program, the fraud issues which resulted in a proposal to freeze all of the child care assistance to low income families until the State could revamp that program did not pass so that program will continue and child care assistance support will be available moving forward.

In addition there are some things in the works to prevent future attempts at fraud. The State is looking at implementing an electronic attendance record and having a centralized location for providers to register. Also,\$425,000 has been allocated each year for fraud investigations at a county level, presumably to support our fraud investigation team.

Commissioner Marcotte mentioned that DHS has been directed to form a work group that will be looking at how to reduce the DHS spending by \$100 million. Would like Cynthia to let her know when that is formed and who ends up on that.

Commissioner Niemi asked Cynthia if she had heard anything about the new bill being signed by the President that requires Doctors/Hospitals to publish all of their rates for services. Cynthia said she will look into it and report back to the board at a later date what she finds out.

Commissioner Marcotte also mentioned that the MN Attorney General's Office is looking into possibly bringing suit against drug manufactures, such as insulin and others, that over the years has not had manufacturing costs rise but that the manufactures continue to raise prices on that they charge for them to the consumers.

Cynthia continued her update by talking about the Leadership Leverage course evaluations she received; they were all very positive and everyone appreciated the opportunity to take the class. In addition the evaluation showed that the course work was helpful to the participants in their daily operations. She will be reaching out to all of the

## **AITKIN COUNTY BOARD**

department heads soon and is looking into starting another class possibly beginning in September.

Commissioner Marcotte thanked Cynthia for leading the class and said that it is up to us to help interested employees who are looking to advance their roles so they can become better leaders.

Lastly Cynthia talked about the Tribal Relations meeting she attended at the American Indian Resource Center in Duluth. The topics that were agreed upon points of concern for both Counties and Tribes and a starting point for collaborative discussions include Child Protection, Children's Justice Initiative, and the Substance Use Disorder issues. There was a good discussion on how together, we can best manage those changes that are coming down from the State. She said they plan to meet quarterly and that she will be bringing back updates after each meeting to the Board.

#### Adoption of Resolution: Managed Health Care Organizations

Motion by Commissioner Wedel, seconded by Commissioner Pratt and carried, all members voting yes to approve the selection of Blue Cross Blue Shield and UCare for Managed Health Care Organizations.

#### Approval of Contracts/Agreements/Policies

Motion by Commissioner Westerlund, seconded by Commissioner Niemi and carried, all members voting yes to approve the Service Agreement between Aitkin County and the Hill City School District for Transportation of Children and Youth in Foster Care Placement.

# Facing the Challenges of Dental Health Access in Rural Minnesota Presentation, Stacey Durgin

Stacey started by giving the Board a bit of background on what C&TC (Child & Teen Checkups) is and what she does as the Coordinator.

She said since she became involved with the C&TC Program that she has been concerned with the lack of dental care options for people in the County on MA or Minnesota Care.

She also said there has only been one time, in 20 years, when any of the local dental providers have indicated that they have able to take on new MA or Minnesota Care patients: dentists are only required to have a small percentage of Medical Assistance and MN Care. Once the provider provides service, they are required to continue to provide them with service. Thus providers rarely need to add new patients to meet heir percentage requirements.

New federal requirements took effect in October of 2017 that now require medical clinics to provide fluoride varnishing to kids to help with the dental care access issues.

In 2017Stacey was contacted by the Minnesota Dental Care Initiative and the MN Collaborative Rural Health Project. At the same time she had heard from her partners in the NE Region that Children's Dental Services (CDS) would now bring hygenists and dentists to rural Minnesota to provide dental. She arranged a meeting with these partners, Riverwood Healthcare, and Head Start, which initiated the conception of the Aitkin County Oral Health Initiative. Through that collaboration Riverwood was able to find where to get the fluoride varnish for patients, she was provided with educational materials, and services were set up provide access to dental care for Aitkin County for patients from youth up to 26 years of age.

### AITKIN COUNTY BOARD

The service began in the City of Aitkin, with sites alternating between community partners who allow the use of their space and the Aitkin School District.

In 2018 Children's Dental Services provided care to over 30 patients were served, mostly children. During the 2018-2019 school year, Stacey worked with Hill City and McGregor School districts, to begin meeting the needs in those communities. McGregor School District had 17 people sign up for the clinic. Unfortunately, some of the appointments took longer than expected and one day was not enough time for CDS to serve that many people, so they came back in June to finish the patients they were not able to get to. So far, this year, they have provided dental services to more than 60 people within the county.

Also, just recently Stacey discovered a program for senior citizens, the medically fragile, and the disabled that provides donated services through providers in neighboring counties.

She continues to look for more opportunities to provide the dental care that so many of our constituents are missing in the county.

The Board thanked her for her hard work and dedication to the dental health of our citizens.

#### **Committee Reports**

**Joint Powers Board Report, Tri-County Community Health Services Board** Erin briefed the board that they met on June 13<sup>th</sup> and that it was mostly an administrative meeting. That they are starting to look at all of their processes and applying the LEAN method to them to make them more efficient and that they received a legislative update, mostly concerning the SHIP program, also.

#### **H&HS Advisory Committee Update**

Carole talked about how good of a group of people there are on the committee and that they are all very active in participating in it and the Suicide Prevention project they are working on.

Commissioner Wedel added that they received training on Suicide Prevention form May Maran of the Crisis and Referral Service.

#### **AEOA Update**

Commissioner Westerlund briefed the Board that they met on June 19<sup>th</sup> in Virginia, MN and that they put on a Senior Carnival that was very well attended.

After the carnival they held their regular board meeting and learned that their current director, Paul, was retiring within the next six months and that they are beginning their search for a replacement for him. They also received some training on financial reports and how to read a budget.

Commissioner Marcotte ended the meeting by speaking about Angels, in McGregor, and how she had received some letters of concern from community members about how important Angels was to the area and that she would leave responding to them up to Commissioner Westerlund and the CARE Board.

Commissioner Niemi mentioned that Bob Marcum has been contacting him in regard to Angels and CARE also and that Bob is taking care of those concerns himself and has a good handle on it.

Commissioner Westerlund added that CARE had recently hired a new director, Lynn Jacobs, and that she had started last week and has been very busy, but has been thinking about the Angels situation and hope to have a plan in the near future. She wants to do it right the first time.

Commissioner Wedel and Erin talked about their meeting with the US Census Bureau representative and how they will be adding more jobs, be them temporary, to the County while the census is being conducted. The bureau also asked that the county set up a Complete Count Committee and Commissioner Wedel intended to talk more about it during the regular Board meeting.

The meeting was adjourned at 2:36 p.m.

Next Meeting – July 23, 2019

HHS BOARD ADJOURNS

Break: 2:36 p.m. to 2:42 p.m.

**BREAK** 

Motion by Commissioner Wedel, seconded by Commissioner Niemi and carried, all members voting yes to approve the Consent Agenda as follows: A) Correspondence File: June 11, 2019 to June 24, 2019; B) Approve County Board Minutes: June 11, 2019; C) Approve Electronic Funds Transfers: \$770,642.31; D) Approve Commissioner Warrants: General Fund \$82,213.49, Road & Bridge \$25,039.48, Health & Human Services \$28,804.77, State \$390.00, Trust \$9,332.96, Forest Development \$9,360.95, Capital Project \$826.05, Long Lake Conservation Center \$5,235.76, Parks \$1,594.18 for a total of \$162,797.64; E) Approve Auditor Warrants - Contegrity Insurance Settlement: Capital Project \$131,071.55; F) Approve Auditor Warrants – May/June 2019 Settlement: Agency \$3,616,971.54; G) Approve Auditor Warrants - Sales & Use Tax: General Fund \$453.93, Road & Bridge \$461.62, State Fund \$7,033.00, Trust \$23.49, Long Lake Conservation Center \$233.47, Parks \$1,056.83 for a total of \$9,262.34; H) Approve Manual Warrants: General Fund \$14,243.83, Road & Bridge \$118,086.03, Health & Human Services \$5,673.19, State \$1,376,127.54, Trust \$469.93, Taxes & Penalties \$6,172.00, Long Lake Conservation Center \$1,240.86, Parks \$215.00 for a total of \$1,522,228.38; I) Adopt Resolution: Aitkin County License Center; J) Adopt Resolution: LG230 Off-Site Gambling Isle Lions Club; K) Adopt Resolution: Large Assembly License – The Glen Store & Grill; L) Approve Nationwide Life Insurance Company Fixed Account Amendment, Option 1

CONSENT AGENDA

Under the consent agenda, motion for a resolution by Commissioner Wedel, seconded by Commissioner Niemi and carried, all members voting yes to adopt resolution – Aitkin County License Center:

**BE IT RESOLVED**, the Aitkin County License Center (Deputy Registrar 83) operating at 2 2<sup>nd</sup> Street NW, Aitkin, MN 56431 incurred additional costs with the implementation of MNLARS.

RESOLUTION 20190625-048 AITKIN COUNTY LICENSE CENTER

**BE IT RESOLVED**, the 2019 Minnesota Legislature passed legislation to reimburse Deputy Registrars for those costs incurred.

**BE IT RESOLVED,** the amount of reimbursement to the Aitkin County License Center is determined to be \$45,503.28 based on the established formula in legislation.

**BE IT RESOLVED,** legislation requires the acceptance of release of liability from future MNLARS claims.

**THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,** the Aitkin County Board of Commissioners accepts the grant amount and authorizes the following signatures to the grant agreement, board chairperson and board clerk. And further authorizes the signature of the county auditor/deputy registrar 83 to the liability release.

Under the consent agenda, motion for a resolution by Commissioner Wedel, seconded by Commissioner Niemi and carried, all members voting yes to adopt resolution – LG230 Off-Site Gambling – Isle Lions Club:

**BE IT RESOLVED**, the Aitkin County Board of Commissioners agrees to approve the Application to Conduct Off-Site Gambling - Form LG230 - of the Isle Lions Club at the following location – The White Pine Logging Show, 15489 180<sup>th</sup> Avenue, Finlayson, MN 55735 – Williams Township. (Note: Dates of activity for Pull-Tabs and Bingo – August 30, 2019 to September 1, 2019)

RESOLUTION 20190625-049 LG230 OFF-SITE GAMBLING – ISLE LIONS CLUB

Under the consent agenda, motion for a resolution by Commissioner Wedel, seconded by Commissioner Niemi and carried, all members voting yes to adopt resolution – Large Assembly License – The Glen Store & Grill:

**BE IT RESOLVED**, the Aitkin County Board of Commissioners agrees to approve the following Application for Large Assembly:

Chris Hagman d/b/a The Glen Store & Grill – Malmo Township
This music entertainment is scheduled to take place July 5<sup>th</sup> and July 6<sup>th</sup>, 2019
from 7:00 P.M. to 12:00 P.M. Midnight daily.

RESOLUTION 20190625-050 LARGE ASSEMBLY LICENSE – THE GLEN STORE & GRILL

Jessica Seibert, County Administrator welcomed and introduced Teresa Smude, the new Aitkin County Housing and Redevelopment Authority (HRA) Executive Director to the Board.

HRA EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Steve Hughes, Aitkin County SWCD District Manager discussed with the Board proposed language for the Lake Superior 1 Watershed 1 Plan. Motion by Commissioner Pratt, seconded by Commissioner Niemi and carried, all members voting yes to approve the proposed language to the plan, as presented.

LAKE SUPERIOR 1 WATERSHED 1 PLAN

Jessica Seibert, County Administrator reviewed the 2019 1<sup>st</sup> Quarter Budget with the Board.

1<sup>st</sup> QUARTER BUDGET REVIEW

Jessica Seibert, County Administrator updated the Board on the following:

- AMC Communications Mtg.
- Quarterly MACA Administrators Mtg.

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR UPDATES Building Construction

Motion by Commissioner Wedel, seconded by Commissioner Pratt and carried, all members voting yes to approve and authorize signatures to the Aitkin County Public Land Survey Corner Remonumentation Project Contract between Aitkin County / Aitkin County Land Department and Widseth Smith Nolting & Associates, as presented.

PUBLIC LAND SURVEY CORNER PROJECT CONTRACT

Bobbie Danielson, HR Director presented Personnel Committee recommendations to the Board:

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

<u>Chief Financial Officer position</u>: Motion by Commissioner Pratt, seconded by Commissioner Niemi and carried, all members voting yes to approve creating and filling a FT CFO position and accepting the consultant's recommendation of Grade 12.

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

<u>Forester & Sr. Forester positions</u>: Motion by Commissioner Westerlund, seconded by Commissioner Pratt and carried, all members voting yes to accept the consultant's recommendation of Grade 7 for the Forester position, and Grade 8 for the Sr. Forester position.

FORESTER & SR. FORESTER

Motion by Commissioner Wedel, seconded by Commissioner Niemi and carried, all members voting yes to approve letter of support to Minnesota Public Utilities Commission, as presented.

LETTER OF SUPPORT

The Board discussed: ECRL Finance Mtg., AMC Communications Mtg., AIS, Snake River, CARE Board, CARE Finance, Mille Lacs Watershed, DAC, Sobriety Court, Community Meal, Budget, Personnel, Facilities, TZD, Census Bureau, Enbridge, and AMC Board.

BOARD DISCUSSION

Motion by Commissioner Wedel, seconded by Commissioner Niemi and carried, all members voting yes to adjourn the meeting at 3:42 p.m. until Tuesday, July 9, 2019 at the Aitkin Public Library.

**ADJOURN** 

Anne Marcotte, Board Chair

Aitkin County Board of Commissioners

Jessica Seibert, County Administrator